EDITORIAL:
MAJLIS – AN INSPIRATION 

The grave human rights violations in other parts of India like Bhopal Gas Tragedy - 1984, Sikh riots 1985, Gujarat pogrom 2002 or recently Nandigram 2007. Thereafter, for months and years, the human rights defenders were competing for highlighting the events and pressurizing the state to take the perpetrators to elusive justice.  Documentation were undertaken, most of the activists were conferred with international awards. But in Jammu and Kashmir, it is an ongoing process from last 20 years. The incidents occurred here frequently got over shadowed despite public outcry and protests. The momentum gained by the civil society groups gets diverted and deflated. 

Taking an account of this year’s incidents, in February one Fayaz Ahmad, a tailor was shot dead. The killing triggered widespread protests. In the same month, two more persons were killed at Bomia followed by unprecedented protests and the formation of a local Co-ordination Committee for demanding primarily shifting of RR camp from the village. The crescendo got marred by the killing of a carpenter at Pakherpora, when CRPF personnel shot him dead without any provocation.  In the month of April, one Shams Din was used as human shield by Rashtriya Rifles (RR). He was forced to enter a house to hold negotiations with the holed up militants. This killing also triggered widespread protests. In the month of May, one Manzoor Ahmad Beig was killed in custody by Special Operation Group (SOG) and this incident also evoked massive protests. The major event in this year was the double rape and murder of a women and a girl on May 29, which rocked the entire valley. A local Co-ordination Committee Majlis-e-Mashawarat was constituted by civil society groups at Shopian with the support of political organizations. Though rapes have been committed since the eruption of armed insurgency, but the Shopian incident triggered wide-scale protests in entire valley. There were strikes, protests which pushed the government to a tight corner, and in order to pacify the public anger Jan Commission was appointed. The battle was fought in the court and on the political front. In the month of June, two more persons were killed and thirty injured in Baramulla by paramilitary and police personnel who opened fire to disperse protesters protesting against molestation of a woman by a police official. In October one Sajid Ahmad Ganie was killed by RR troopers in custody. Incidents that evoked severe reaction were probed.  This year so far 15 enquiries were ordered as happened the enquiries were least concluded and seldom the perpetrators were indicted. 

Every incident over shadows the previous one, thereby, only bailing out the state. It only makes the perpetrators conformable, because it is an unending process since the victims mostly from rural areas accept it as fait accompli and finally matter ends up in official and human rights statistics. And the process goes on and on. The exception was that of Majlis e Mashawarat, Shopian which had demonstrated consistency, determination and is still an inspiration for victims of state terrorism. Majlis e Mashawarat, Shopian, which is economically affluent and educationally better off than other victims, showed exemplary courage. 

According to a foreign journalist, reporting Kashmir is boring, as the routine excesses are normal and is no news for the international media. It may be true through the media point of view, but what is very important is, how to be innovative in highlighting these events and inviting attention. The human rights activists, besides, credible documentation of theses events have to evolve ways and means to highlight the excesses, in which the Kashmir civil society has failed to a certain extent. There are problems also because the human rights campaign requires enormous resources which are only available to the extensions of the state and the capable and efficient people are least attracted towards this campaign.  The point is how to coordinate in order to document maximum incidents so that any incident does not turn into a non-event. The public protests and demonstration were emotional outbursts as happened in above mentioned cases, is not long lasting. But documenting incidents and use of modern technology to reach to the international conscience can expose the state institutions and give credence to the victims craving for justice.    

CIVIL SOCIETY AND INDIA’S OFFER OF DIALOGUE

On 15th of November 2009, the Jammu and Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society (JKCCS) organized a discussion “Civil Society Concerns about Dialogue” Representatives from various civil society groups from; Srinagar – Doda – Handwara – Islamabad – Shopian – Poonch – Baramulla – Budgam – Ganderbal – Kulgam – Bijbehara – Kupwara – Rafiabad – Uri, including students from various colleges and Kashmir University, teachers, professors, representatives of various district bar associations, journalists participated in the discussion. 

The discussion was held in a local hotel in Srinagar which continued for several hours. The participants unanimously adopted a statement of resolution (see box). 
Voicing their concern about the likely dialogue offer by Indian state the participants expressed: 

Zaffar Shah, a lawyer said, the relationship between India and J&K is in itself in question. So, there cannot be any dialogue within the framework of Indian legal or constitutional paradigm. Before entering any dialogue, resistance leaders must know the content of the talks. However, dialogue is the way forward and civil society representatives can also be the frontline in the dialogue process. 

Abdul Majid Siraj, author
Mere bilateralism has always been stridently harmful to the Kashmir dispute. People of Kashmir are the primary stakeholders. We have our own international personality in the nature of the UN resolutions.

Shuja’at Bukhari, journalist
How can India build confidence without transparency while treating people as suspects? “Quiet diplomacy” is a tool to evade accountability. India has not moved an inch toward people of J&K so far in terms of political resolution. 

Inayatullah Balroo, President - Baramulla Beopar Mandal
Leadership must unite to carry forward the struggle and achieve right to self-determination.

Dr. Syed Zaffar Mehdi, physician
Pro-India parties cannot be part of any solution because they have been part of India’s oppression machinery.

Naseer Khora, Doda Peace Forum
People of Jammu region have also sacrificed for the achievement of collective political rights. They too need to be informed about the processes of dialogue and taken into confidence. 

Abdul Rashid, Global Peace Foundation Handwara
The role of gun is over. We must enter into dialogue confidently and make our point clear.

Anwar Ashai, businessman
They want to disintegrate our society in the name of dialogue. We’ve to be very careful about the dialogue. Indian state has entered into Kashmir through deceit. How can they be honest about the dialogue?   

Noor-ul-Hassan, Rtd Chief Conservator
India has used the institution of dialogue to buy time since 1953. Armed struggle brought the Kashmir dispute to the forth and its leadership cannot be ignored. 

 Babar Qadri, lawyer
India has always used dialogue process to corrupt and co-opt our leadership.    

A representative from Majlis-e-Mashawarat Shopian– a committee formed to campaign for justice to the families of double rape and murder victims of Shopian 
Indian state did not even disclose the identity of the rapists and murderers of two of our sisters in Shopian. We cooperated at every level with the state and central investigating agencies since the heinous crimes were committed in late May, 2009. Instead, the state has been utilizing all sinister, covert and overt measures to obfuscate the Shopian case. So, we’ve no faith in undertaking any dialogue with the Indian state. How can Kashmiris talk to the same state without any international guarantee on an issue which has a larger bearing? And in the season of purported dialogue India is even now unwilling to accept Kashmir as a dispute.

Mohammed Amin, lawyer 
History is witness that dialogue has always been conducted with malafide and never with bonafide intentions.  Mr. Manmohan Singh is the prime minister of India, and not the prime minister of Jammu and Kashmir. We want to convey to Indian civil society that your leadership is merchants of death and destruction in Kashmir. 

Representative from Peoples’ Rights Movement – an organization of former militant turned peace activists - Adbul Qadeer 
Accountability about torture and custodial deaths at the hands of Indian state machinery should become pre-requisite for considering any dialogue. 

Prof. Sheikh Showkat Hussain, Kashmir University
Dominant response from people about the dialogue is always skeptical. India has forfeited its credibility as a serious negotiating partner right from taking the Kashmir issue to the UN, violating 1952 agreement, destroying article 370, not following Simla agreement or Musharraf formula. We degrade ourselves by presenting ourselves for an uninvited dialogue. India has to first establish its credibility as a serious partner. India does not follow its own laws and constitutional provisions in Kashmir. International laws hold that territories can neither be sold nor conquered. International guarantees are required as in every other international dispute. This is not a question of rehabilitation of certain disgruntled activists. This concerns the destiny of all the individuals of Jammu and Kashmir. 

Prof. Hameeda Nayeem, Kashmir University
Resistance is mainstream as majority of people want freedom. Pro-India politicians represent themselves only. Media should not become a part of dirty game of elevating some leaders and degrading others at the cost of others.

Zareef Ahmed Zareef, critic and poet
We need to get united and forge a consensus on how we need to proceed ahead. We are all victims. Our every facet – pen, tongue, mind - has been enslaved and our conscience seems to be on sale. We need thinking and serious minds to assess the situations and formulate the matching responses. In the light of past experiences, we should proceed for a meaningful and purposeful dialogue.

MYSTERY SHROUDS DEATH OF KASHMIRI BUSINESSMAN
FAMILY SUSPECTS FOUL PLAY 

Mystery shrouds the death of sixty-year-old, Haji Abdul Majeed Shah Zargar, a Kashmiri businessman of Kanitar, Lal Bazaar, Srinagar whose dead body on 31 March 2009 was found some 8 km before Agra near a railway track. The Agra police claimed that the businessman died in an accident while the deceased’s family disputed the claim. 

According to a younger son of Haji, Mohammad Shafi who first got the news of his father’s death, “If my father was coming to Delhi what for he was going to Agra. Police says that his body was recovered near a railway track some 8 km from Agra. Interestingly, he had no travel ticket of Agra. Our business is only confined to Delhi. I doubt it was an accident. There was some conspiracy behind my father’s death. Before he left for Delhi we talked on the phone. Had he been going to Agra he would had certainly told me.”   

Mohammad Shafi, 40, while relating the incident and the efforts his family made to reach to the truth told to The Informative Missive, “On March 31, in the afternoon while I was busy at my showroom at Bogal, New Delhi my cell phone rang up and the caller identified himself a policeman of GRP Cant, Agra who informed me some of my relative is dead. When I asked the caller who was he (my relative), he quickly gave twist to his tough and said the person is badly injured in an accident, and they got my cell phone number from his pocket dairy. I was told to reach Agra at the earliest to identify him. I alone boarded the train and moved towards Agra, where I after enquiring reached to the spot where the dead body was lying. The body was lying 8 km before Agra near a railway track. The dead body was beyond recognition, as the part of the head was missing and the body had injury marks all over. I identified the body was of my father by its physical features and clothes. In shocked state, I contacted the railway police to know further details about the incident. The police told me that my farther died in an accident and they spotted the body near the railway track. They (police) were informed by a railway employee namely, Fatima about the abandoned body.”


He further said, “Shocked to see the body in such a shape, I got skeptical about the cause of my father’s death, as I have reasons for it. When I checked the pockets of my father I found Delhi bound train ticket, but the body was lying before 8 km from Agra. What he has to do in Agra? How his body was recovered from Agra whereas the ticket I found from his pocket was Delhi bound. He had no reasons to go Agra. My suspicion got strengthen, when I asked for FIR and postmortem report from the police authorities, which they denied to share”.


Mohammad Shafi was convinced that there was something behind his father’s death. But then his only concern was to give the body a decent burial for which he had to take his father’s body to Srinagar.


“That time my priority was to shift the body to Srinagar for last rites as due to soaring heat, the body had developed stinky smell. It was difficult for me to shift the body to Srinagar alone and I called my nephew in Srinagar and asked him to come to Delhi in first flight. Next day, police of GRP Cant helped me in arranging an ambulance to shift the body to Srinagar, and meanwhile, my nephew also arrived. We shifted the body to Srinagar for last rites. Everyone at home, my family, neighbours and relatives were shell-shocked. Even after 8 months my family is yet to come out of shock and everyone is keen to know the truth.”


Since my father’s death I had sleepless nights and there are many unanswered questions about my father’s death.  


“Many questions often spin in my mind. If my father posses Delhi bound rail ticket, how his body was spotted near Agra? What he has to do in Agra? Why police refused to share the FIR copy and postmortem report? These questions itches me. I am adamant to know the truth about my father’s murder”, Mohammad Shafi averred. 

“We moved an application before District Magistrate, Srinagar for taking up the matter with the authorities outside. On April 21, 09, District Magistrate, Srinagar sent a letter to District Magistrate Delhi and District Magistrate Agra requesting them to kindly get the matter enquired so that the guilty be brought to justice. Again on 9 June 2009 another latter was sent by the DM Srinagar for taking up the matter with the administration of the concerned governments and for furnishing the requisite report expeditiously. But there was no response and finally on November 20, 2009, again a reminder was sent to the Delhi and Agra DMs again requesting to enquire the matter and furnish the outcome to his office. But nothing has been done so far,” he said.      

“My father was dealing in jewelry and joined me at Delhi after I established a showroom there. He used to travel Srinagar-Delhi road but always somebody was assisting him. In March 2009, for the first time he traveled alone and the incident occurred. We have suffered a lot since March 2009. I will not rest till I know the truth, how and why my father died?” Mohammad Shafi expressed.

TRAGIC FAMILIES

TALE OF TWO VICTIM FAMILIES OF ARMY ATROCITIES 
Two neighbours, a seventy-two-year old, Alif Din Tass and Mohammad Ismaiel Tass victims of alleged army atrocities from a remote village Zamoorpattan of Tehsil Uri of north Kashmir approximately 90 km from Srinagar city approached the office of The Informative Missive to make themselves heard. Both are torture victims and heart rendering tales to narrate. Alif Din’s two sons Mohammad Ismaiel and Mohammad Iqbal were subjected to enforced disappearance. He was tortured twice for demanding the whereabouts of his sons. Mohammad Ismaiel’s one brother Jalal-ud-Din was disappeared and one of his brothers was allegedly killed in a fake encounter by the army.  

According to them, army took unfair advantage of the inaccessibility of the area and the proximity the area has with Line of Actual Control (LOC). The army de facto administered the area. They can suspect, arrest, torture or disappear anyone they wish to, they said. They added, no one in the area ever sum up audacity to expose the army atrocities. Whenever anyone tries to raise voice against the troops he has to face the army wrath.     
Alif Din while sharing his ordeal said, “In the year 1994 an army contingent of 11 Grenadier forced their entry into my house and took away my son Mohammad Iqbal, then 20, a student of 10th standard. When we asked them where they are taking him, they replied aggressively he would be released soon. Even my wife bowed to them to release him, but they didn’t pay any heed to her pleas.”

 Alif Din further said, “Next day, we went to the army camp located few hundred meters away from our house to enquire about Iqbal. On reaching there the troops guarding the camp entrance told us that he would be set free soon. For three days we frequently visited the camp without any success.”

“On fourth day, when I along with my few of relatives tried to meet the army officials in order to get him released. The army personnel on guard at the gate catch me and dragged me inside the camp. In camp, I was taken to a separate room where few army officials later entered. They (officials) told me to forget him. When I asked for the reasons they start beating and torturing me insisting to forget him,” Alif Din said.

He reveals, “When I refused to cooperate, they threatened me of dire consequences. I presumed that they might have killed him. And when I asked them if they have killed him please let me know. This infuriated them, and I was subjected to various forms of torture for three consecutive days till they released me after continuous protests by the villagers and my relatives outside the camp.”

“After my release, I never muster courage to visit them again, as I fear more torture. Whenever, they patrol our village every time they came to me and threatened me so as to keep me silent,” Alif Din alleged.
“I was advised by my relatives and neighbours to give up search, as the army is not accountable. Initially, I was adamant to know the fate of my son but by the time my courage weakens with every threat the army posed to me. For the welfare of my family I stopped searching for my son, but the pain of his disappearance persistently distressing me and often I blame myself for not doing enough for him,” he said. 
In the year December 1999, Alif Din’s another son Mohammad Ismaiel, 19, along with brother of Mohammad Ismaiel, Jalal-ud-Din, 22, were arrested and disappeared by the troops of 9 Rajput Rifles camped at Chulam. 
The two neighbours Alif Din Tass and Mohammad Ismaiel Tass said, “One night in October 1999, late in the evening an army party from 9 Rajput Rifles came to our houses and took away the identity cards from Mohammad Ismaiel and Jalal-ud-Din without giving any reason and asked them to come to the camp. Snatching I-cards of youth was then a common practice in our area”.

They further said, “Next day, when the boys went to the camp to collect their I-cards, they were told to stay in the camp and were released in the evening only to be told to come next day. For two months this practice continues. They went in the morning to the camp and returned late in the evening back home.”

The duo was frustrated by making aimless rounds of the military camp only to return tired back home in the evening. Finally, on December 28, 1999, the boys disappeared without any trace. 
They added, “On December 28, at around 4:00 am, two unknown persons in plain clothes came to our houses and told us that they were sent by Major Sharma of 9 Rajput Rifles to inform the boys to collect their I-cards today from the camp. The boys after two hours at 6:00 am, after the dawn went to the camp, thinking that their suffering would come to an end that day, since the Major has sent his own men to inform the boys.  The boys were seen entering the camp by some villagers. When they didn’t returned back till late evening. Perturbed, mothers of Ismaiel and Jalal-ud-Din and Jalal-ud-Din’s sister with mashals (fire torches) in their hands (a rule imposed by the army in the villages during night) went to the camp. We (relatives) were told that the boys never came to the camp and we were beaten brutally with sticks and gun butts. Frightened and injured we returned back home.” 

“Next morning, me, my wife and Jalal Din’s sister, mother and uncle went to the camp to enquire about them. On reaching the camp, the soldiers guarding the camp when saw us came out of the camp, beat us all with gun butts and sticks even women were not spared. They abused all of us and told they never call the boys to the camp. They threatened us of dire consequences, if we again even come close to their camp or make any noise. They ordered us to return back silently, while I was taken into the camp where I was detained for thirteen days and tortured brutally,” Alif Din said. 


Alif Din added, “The army in the camp repeatedly threatened me to forget the boys to avoid further trouble.” 

Alif Din’s torture creates fear in the area and no one even think of going again to the army camp to demands the boys’ whereabouts. 

“The torture of Ali Din caused fear psychosis in the villager and even people advised us not to go again there, as they can do anything and will go to any extent. Even people told us that what has happened has happened, we can’t change things, as the troops are accountable to none,” Mohammad Ismaiel said. 

Mohammad Ismaiel brother of Jalal-ud-Din said, “Our families were ruined. I lost two brothers to army atrocities, and I am myself a torture victim. Whenever we protest, we were tortured and beaten; the army is using every dreadful mean at their disposal to suppress and oppress us.”
Ismaiel said, “On July 25, 2004, my elder brother Mohammad Yaqoob was killed in a fake encounter by the army in Maidan area, which lies near LOC and claimed that they have killed an infiltrator  coming from Pakistan. Next day, on July 26, 2004, police called us to identify the body. While examining Mohammad Yaqoob’s body, we found that he was strangulated as his throat had visible marks of strangulation and a bullet was fired upon his ribcage which pierced through his shoulder.”  
“Fearing further retribution we never went to the army. We assumed the boys might have been killed and thrown somewhere,” Ismaiel mourns.
TORTURE TESTIMONIALS

Mohammad Ismaiel Tass  

S/o Raj Mohammad Tass

R/o: Zamboorpattan Tehsil Uri

Arrested by: 9 Rajput Rifles 

Age: 29

Occupation: Imam (one who lead prayers)

Date of arrest: December 1999

Date of testimony: 11 Nov 2009
Mohammad Ismaiel was frequently arrested, tortured and detained by different army units and police agencies. He was subjected to various forms of torture and has served several years in detention in various jails and detention centers. The torture has caused him physical and psychological loss almost rendered him incapacitated. His one brother was disappeared and another was killed in fake encounter by the army.  

While talking to The Informative Missive he said, “My ordeal begins with the arrest of my brother Jalal-ud-Din, 22, along with another youth Mohammad Ismaiel, 19, a neighbour by 9 Rajput Rifles army stationed at Chulan area in December 1999. Then I was a student of 10th standard. While protesting the arrest of my elder brother outside 9 Rajput Rifles camp, I was arrested by the troops and taken into the camp situated at Middle School Zamoorpattan. The army accused me of being a militant. Instantly, after dragging me inside, they started beating me mercilessly with canes and gun butts. They repeatedly kicked my abdomen and sensitive parts without paying any heed to my age and ignored my pleas.” 

Ismaiel further said, “When I told them (army) that I was protesting my brother’s arrest by them. They got infuriated, striped me naked, abused and hung me upside down with hands tide backside and kept beating me for hours. They made me to drink huge amount of contaminated water, and repeatedly kicked my abdomen to damage my intestines. They smashed my head on ground, punched and kicked my face intermittently. Electric shocks were administered all over my body; on my arms, legs, fingertips, toe-tips and on my knees they not even spare my private parts. They also pushed my head into a bucket full of chilli mixed water. Chilli water was also rubbed on my eyes to make sure that the water had gone well inside my eyeballs. They after regular intervals poured petrol into my anus causing unbearable pain. Not only this, they also applied rollers frequently on my legs and thighs. When I felt unconscious, they put me in grave like ditch over 3 feet deep where they kept me for three days. They also sprinkled some acid on my head, which caused baldness to half of my head, and often I have severe headaches. The torture continues for 20 days without any pause. They used every method of torture available with them. They not stopped here. The army filed First Information Report (FIR) in Uri police station, wherein they claimed that they have arrested a militant. After 20 days detention, the army handed me over to Uri police station, where I was kept for next 20 days, but luckily I was not beaten or tortured there. They could have done that, but my physical conditions were not allowing them to further torture or beat me. After that I was shifted to Sub Jail Baramulla where from I was released after one year”.  

Ismaiel further reveals, “Barely 3 ½ months after my release, one night when I was with my family there was a knock at the main door. When my mother opened the door, she spotted a joint posse of army from 5 Mar Regiment and police. They were asking for me. Among the contingent was in charge of the Chulan Police Chowki, Mohammad Ashraf, who dragged me out and took me to Chulan Chowki. In Chulan Chowki they beat me mercilessly with rods and sticks for half-an-hour. Subsequently, they took me to Uri police station and detained me there for 10 days where from I was shifted to JIC Matches Factory Baramulla (an army camp) and detained there for three days. After three days, they again shifted me to police station Uri where from the police took me to Srinagar Central Jail, where I was detained for 2 months. In Central jail, I was informed that I have been booked under Public Safety Act (PSA) and I was shifted to Udhampur jail.”

He further added, “After spending 2 ½ years in Udhampur jail, I was shifted back to Sub Jail Baramulla where I was detained for two months till I was bailed out. Soon I came out of the Sub Jail; I was again arrested by the CIK sleuths who took me to Hari Niwas, where I was detained for three months. After three months, I was shifted to Uri police station where from they released me after three days detention.”

While Ismaiel was recuperating his elder brother was allegedly arrested and subsequently killed in a fake encounter by the army near LOC and Ismaiel was re-arrested. 

Ismaiel said, “On July 25, 2004, my elder brother Mohammad Yaqoob was killed in a fake encounter by the army in Maidan area, which lies near LOC and claimed that they have killed an infiltrator  coming from Pakistan. Next day, on July 26, 2004, police called us to identify the body. While examining Mohammad Yaqoob’s body, we found that he was strangulated as his throat had visible marks of strangulation and a bullet was fired upon his ribcage which pierced through his shoulder. After performing his Chota (a ritual performed on 4th day after the death) in the evening while I stood to lead the Magrib (pre-dusk) prayers in a local mosque, the army forced their entry into the mosque.  I was dragged out of the mosque and was taken to their Camp at Kalsa Zamoorpattan. The arrest came in the backdrop of my brother’s killing. One of the informers had told the army to arrest me in order to intimidate and stop me from making public my brother’s killing by army. In the camp, for a night I was beaten and thrashed mercilessly with canes and gun butts. In the morning, they first took me to Chulan army Camp, where from they took me to Baramulla Police Lane in a Gypsy vehicle and hand me over to police telling them that they have arrested a militant. Police filed FIR against me, wherein they accused me of providing food and shelter to the militants and I was again booked under PSA.”

“I was shifted to Sub Jail Baramulla, where I was detained for two month and then to Udhampure district jail for 14 months till my detention was quashed by Srinagar High Court. Then I was again shifted to Sub Jail Baramulla, where I was kept for 2 ½ months. I was again bailed out but CIK sleuths re-arrested me outside the jail and sent me to Humhama camp Budgam, where they detained me for 1 ½ month. Thereafter, I was shifted back to Uri police station, where from they set me free after one night detention,” Ismaiel said.

The arrests, tortures and detentions caused huge physical and psychological loss to Ismaiel. Ones agile, Ismaiel has lost the physical strength and is unable to do work.    

“Severe tortures and frequent arrests damaged my physical and mental abilities. I am still nursing the torture injuries. Some injuries could be cured but most are incurable. My eyesight diminishes with every passing day. The torture almost rendered me handicapped. Both of my legs lost the strength due to heavy rollers applied upon them, I am suffering from amnesia; I am a patient of severe acute physical complicacies. I seldom sleep as my body aches every night. The pain seems unending and remedies beyond reach. My financial conditions worsen by one after the other tragedy, befell on me and my family. Now I am making little earning from a mosque where I work as an Imam (one who lead prayers),” he said. 

Before concludes he said, “I still feel that army can come anytime to arrest me. This feeling keeps haunting me and the mental torture seems unending.” 

Alif Din Tass

Age: 72 

S/o Salam Din 

R/o: Zamboorpattan Tehsil Uri

Age: 72 

Occupation: Peasant 

Arrested by: 11 Grenadier Army and 9 Rajput Rifles

Date of arrest: 1994

Date of testimony: 11 Nov 2009

Seventy-two-year-old, Alif Din, a peasant from Zamboorpattan of Tehsil Uri of north Kashmir was allegedly arrested and tortured twice in 1994 and 1999 for demanding the release of his sons arrested and subsequently disappeared by army. The torture developed severe multiple fractures all over his body, his right arm got dysfunctional and his age is not also in his side. 

The old man has no idea why his sons were disappeared and he was subjected to torture. He is still wondering why he has been persecuted and his family targeted. 

While relating his ordeal to The Informative Missive he said, “In 1994 troops of 11 Grenadier camped at Chula area of Uri picked up my son Mohammad Iqbal, 20, and for three days I was pleading for his release and every time they assured me of his release soon. Fearing about the wellbeing of my son, I frequently visited the army camp and demanded my son’s release. Irked by my repeated visits and demand for my son lying with them they caught hold of me and took me inside the camp.”

He further said, “In the camp they took me into a room where I was surrounded by seven army men. They told me to forget him (my son) and start beating me with rods, sticks, gun butts, and also kicked my sensitive parts. When I refused to give up my claim, they blindfolded and stripped me naked. Few of them tied my hands and hung me upside down and made me to drink huge amount of water. While filling my belly with water; some among them repeatedly kicked my abdomen to damage my intestines. While I was hung upside down they put chilli mixed water bucket beneath my head and dip it into it repeatedly. Few of them punched and pressed my eyes to make sure that the chilli water has gone well inside my eyes. Immediately, after that they drenched me in water and administered electric currents all over my body. They tied wires on my fingertips, private parts and applied electric currents. I was also denied of sleep. For three consecutive days this practice continues till I was released after villagers in large number protested against my arrest.” 

Alif Din remained bedridden for months together with his right hand incapacitated due to persistent electric torture in army custody.   

In year 1999, tragedy re-visited Alif Din as his another son namely, Mohammad Ismaiel, 19, was arrested and disappeared by the army and he was again arrested and tortured for demanding his other son’s release from army custody. 

 Alif said, “In year 1999, the tragedy re-visited us and my another son Ismaiel and a neighbour were arrested by the troops of 9 Rajput Rifles camped at Chulam area. I along with my wife, mother, sister and uncle of my neighbour went to army camp to ask for their release. But on reaching there, the army personnel on duty at camp gate beat us all and took me inside.”

He further revealed, “In the camp I was tortured for 13 consecutive days with my eyes blindfolded. The roller was applied all over, electric shocks were administered which damaged my frontal private part extensively. After regular intervals, I was hung upside down and was beaten with gun butts, rods and sticks. Water was forced into my belly with constant kicking upon my abdomen. Petrol was poured into my anus and the beating never stops for 13 days till I was released in morbid conditions.”       

After Alif Din was released he was moved to SMHS Hospital Srinagar where he was provided intense medical care for 20 days.  Even the doctors there were shocked to see his conditions.

“After my release my relatives took me on their hands, as I was unable to walk a step. The torture was so severe that for weeks I frequently felt unconscious and for months I remained bedridden. The torture has killed my hunger and damaged my digestive system. I only managed to eat few morsels which caused further health complicacies. My ribcage is badly damaged and my body has fractures all over. Since torture I never had a desired sleep most of the nights went only twisting and turning. It seems that my physical and psychological problems will never overcome and the torture has not only left physical by also mental scars. The nightmarish torture experience still haunting me,” he concludes.  
.AMPUTATION FEAR HAUNTS INDIGENT WOUNDED YOUTH

Nov 26: Unlike in other households of Magam, Handwara sleepy village in the border district of Kupwara, the mood in the dingy house of Ghulam Muhammad Lone is far from being festive on the eve of Eid-ul-Azha. The 25-year old villager, wounded critically in a landmine blast about seven months ago and operated upon thrice, is penniless not so much to celebrate the festival as to save his leg. 

While collecting firewood in a nearby forest on March 1 this year, Lone had stumbled on a landmine planted by the army’s Rashtriya Rifles and got wounded critically. “I had gone to collect firewood when suddenly my foot slipped on a landmine and I was blown away. I fell unconscious and later found myself in the hospital,” he remembers.

“After the explosion, we rushed to the forest and sought the Army’s help to bring him down, but they refused. We took him on our shoulders to the hospital where doctors asked for blood which was donated immediately,” said neighbor, Reyaz Ahmed.

Lone remained under treatment in the SK Institute of Medical Sciences and its Medical College hospital at Bemina for a total of five months and had to undergo three surgeries in his leg getting some prosthetic appliances. He is crippled and remains bed-ridden as he cannot even stand on crutches without support. 

Living in abject poverty, Lone family is finding it hard to arrange his fourth surgery advised by doctors. He faces an ominous prospect of having his leg amputated if he does not raise enough money to undergo the much needed surgery. Till date, the family has not received any compensation from either the government or the army. 

“It is no Eid for us. My two sons eked out a meager living as laborers, after the death of their father, and were content with life. But our bad days started with this tragedy. We used to celebrate Eid like any other villager, but these days our family is battling for survival,” said Lone’s mother, Sara Begum, whose elder son, Bashir Ahmed, too is unable to do any work as he has to be in attendance to his wounded brother round the clock.

“We are unable to continue his treatment as everything we had, except this small house, has been sold out. His treatment cost us more than Rs 50,000, for which we had to sell even the small piece of ancestral land we hand,” she said, adding that Lone’s prosthetic appliances too could not be replaced for want of money.

11 BOYS ALLEGEDY TORTURED, FORCED FOR SODOMY AND FILMED 

Eleven boys four of which were minors were allegedly tortured and forced for sodomy with each other in police custody. They were arrested by police on October 27 from downtown area of Srinagar on the charges of stone pelting. The boys were detained in police station M.R. Gunj (Maharaj Gunj) in the downtown of Srinagar. The victims claimed that police cops were filming their forced sodomy with their cell phone cameras and were taking pleasure out of it. 
The 8 victims out of total 11 were identified as under;

Showkat Ahmad Mir son of Ghulam Mohammad Resident of Eidgah Firdous Colony, Srinagar. 2. Imtiyaz Ahmad Miryan son of Ghulam Ahmad resident of Rangar Stop, Khanyar, Srinagar 3. Faheem Bilal son of Bilal Ahmad Gilkar resident of Nawab Bazar, Srinagar. 4. Owais Gaffar son of Abdul Gaffar resident of Rangar Mohalla, Hawal, Srinagar. 5. Assif Ahmad Bhat son of Farooq Ahmad Bhat resident of Kaka Mohalla Nowhatta, Srinagar. 6. Sajad Subhan Rather S/o: Mohammad Subhan Rather resident of Solina, Srinagar. 7. Abid Abdullaha Mir son of Late M. Abdullaha Mir resident of Kalamdanpora Nawabazar, Srinagar. Name not ascertained Son of Ghulam Mohammad Khan resident of Urdubazar, Bazar Fatehkadal, Srinagar. 

On October 27 police registered a case against the boys vide FIR No.95/2009 and booked them under section 148, 336, 152RPC. After 2 days detention in the police station they were produced before the court on October 29.   
The researcher of The Informative Missive talked to the former general secretary of the High Court Bar Association advocate Bashir Sidique, who has been pleading the case of boys in the court of law. 

FACTS ABOUT THE ARREST & TORTURE:

According to advocate, Bashir Sidique, on October 27 mostly the boys were arrested in the late hours after the daylong protests ended. Some boys were arrested from streets while purchasing bread and some were arrested from different localities of the downtown area. All of the boys were lodged in police station Maharaj Gunj.  

Bashir Sidique said: “the boys revealed that they were eleven in number when they were held in police station M.R. Gunj. As soon as they were taken inside the Lock up, SHO Rafiq and DSP Abdul Hamid had asked them to unclothe. Then policemen present inside the lockup started torturing them with bamboo sticks and boots, the boys received injuries and bled profusely. 

Repeating the victim’s statements, he added: “Later the SHO and DSP forced them to sodomize each other. Whosoever among them refused to accept the decree was ruthlessly beaten up. Out of fear the boys followed their orders. The DSP, SHO and other policemen according to the boys were laughing, taking their pictures and shooting the scene with their mobile phones cameras. The boys were lodged in the police station for two nights and were continuously tortured.”  

                 According to some lawyers, all the 11 boys were so scared that they refused to reveal their names and were covering their faces. They belong to various downtown localities and are aged between 13 and 19. Mostly the boys were reluctant to speak about the happening as they expressed that they cannot speak to everybody because the treatment meted out to them has a social stigma attached to it.
A police official on the condition of anonymity had told media that the forced sodomy is carried out to create fear among the law-breakers. The official was quoted as, “This would force people to think ten times before pelting stones and breaking laws. It creates fear psychosis.”

The facts about the torture of the boys got exposed on October 29, when they were produced before the 1st additional session’s judge, Ashok Gupta, three of the boys accused police of forcing them to sodomise each other in the lock up. The boys showed visible torture on their bodies in the court. Shocked at the revelation, the judge ordered their release in an open court.  Meanwhile, Advocate Bashir Sidique, who had already filed a complaint before the court on behalf of the arrested boys sought their medical examination by reputed doctors. Conceding the plea, the judge directed the medical superintendent of the SMHS Hospital, Srinagar, Dr Wasim Qureshi, to conduct the medical examination through a team of eminent doctors and report back to the court on November 5.

1ST MEDICAL EXAMINATION REPORT

The Medical Examination report submitted on November 5 by the board of doctors constituted by the medical superintendent government SMHS Hospital Srinagar reveals that the panel of doctors comprising of Dr. Syed Javaid Qadri, Doctor Mufti Mehmood Ahmad and Doctor Niyaz Ahmad after examination of the only four of the applicants/accused has reported as under:

Showkat Ahmad Mir son of Ghulam Mohammad Resident of Eidgah Firdous Colony Srinagar. H/o of being beaten and burnt with cigarette bits – O/Exam: tenderness nasal bones-No# clinically – Scab 5mmx, 6mm with irregular margin and dorsum of (L) hand rest of the examination normal. 2. Imtiyaz Ahmad Miryan son of Ghulam Ahmad resident of Rangar stop Khanyar Srinagar- alleged H/o: beaten, O/Exam, 7x15 mm bruise over scalp (vertex) – No evidence of # clinically-rest of the exam-Normal. 3. Faheem Bilal son of Bilal Ahmad Gilkar resident of Nawab Bazar, Srinagar. Alleged H/o being beaten and sodomy. O/Exam. Bruise 2x4 cm left buttock and bruise 1x2 cm over right buttock. No evidence of Assault. 4. Owais Gaffar son of Abdul Gaffar resident of Rangar Mohalla, Hawal, Srinagar. Alleged H/o being beaten and Sodomy. O/exam. 2x10 cm. lacerations (healed) over scalp (left parietal area). Per rectal exam. 

According to advocate Bahsir Sidique, after the submission of medical examination report by the panel of doctors, the Court termed the report as “callous” and "inconclusive”. The report submitted by the medical board had confirmed that boys were tortured and that there were bruises on their bodies and buttocks but the doctors had not given the reason of bruises and injuries.  

While hearing the case, Ist Additional and Sessions Judge Ashok Gupta, however, observed, “The board was expected to find the cause of bruises on body and buttocks. Instead, the board has only mentioned about bruises on body and buttocks and not described the reason how it happened.”

The Judge further asked the medical board why the case was not dealt as directed by the court. He instructed the board to prepare a new exhaustive medical report and also directed the medical officials to be present at the next hearing. Advocate, Bashir Sidiqui, advocate, who filed PIL on behalf of petitioners, said the medical report had only examined four victims and not all.

The families of accused boys had already filed an application before the court of law for seeking order of action against the erring police officials for subjecting them to the unpleasant and wicked treatment in custody. The court consequently taking cognizance of the complaint of accused boys forward the same to SSP for necessary action under law.

The prosecution informed the court that SP, Hazratbal, had been appointed as inquiry officer in the case. The court directed the police to produce the report on November 25 and also asked the medical superintendent of SMHS Hospital to be present in person before it along with the detailed medical report on November 26.
POLICE ACTION

On November 7 Police stated that they have initiated a departmental inquiry to probe the alleged involvement of policemen in the torture of 11 boys in the lock-up in Police Station Maharaj Gunj. 
“We have initiated an inquiry to unravel the truth. SP Hazratbal Maqsood-ul-Zaman was appointed as an inquiry officer,” SSP Srinagar, Javed Riyaz told media. 
He said “M R Gunj Police Station comes under jurisdiction of SP North. However, we wanted an independent probe, so we chose SP Hazratbal to inquire into the case.” 

The city police chief said the inquiry officer would question the officers against whom the charges of torture and sodomy have been leveled. “The inquiry officer has been told to submit a detailed report about the findings,” he said. He said if anything wrong was found, necessary action would be taken against the erring officials. 

SSP Srinagar, however, hastened to add that it is most likely that police officials of M.R. Gunj are not involved in any disrespectful activity leveled against them by some persons.

Meanwhile, Inquiry Officer Maqsood-u-Zaman summoned Duty officer and Munshi of M R Gunj police station to his office to record their statements.

2ND MEDICAL EXAMINATION REPORT

Advocate Bashir Siddiqui further said: “after the first inconclusive medical examination report, the board of doctors on the instructions of court conducted further medical examinations and submitted their reports. Initially only four boys came forward for medical examination but later four more boys were also examined and their reports were submitted on November 27.” The reports are as under:

1. Applicants Examination on: 09/11/2009 by board of doctors:

 Asif Ahmad Bhat son of Farooq Ahmad Bhat resident of Kaka Mohalla Nowhatta was observed by board of doctors: he alleged history of being beaten in police custody. No history of sexual assault. General physical examination normal. On local examination there is 4cmx2cm healed bruised area with scabbing displaced obliquely over lower part of the right leg in the pre-tibia  area. Tenderness over the lumbar spine, no external injury. Orthopedic opinion was sought in the case, which has not been received till now.

2. Applicants examination on 16.11.2009 by board of doctors:

Sajad Subhan Rather S/o: Mohammad Subhan Rather resident of Solina has alleged history of being beaten in custody of police and there is no history sexual assault. General physical examination is normal. On local examination there is one bruise on the right buttock 2cmx3cm displaced transversely and multiple bruises four in number displaced transversely approximately 2cmx5cm each on the left buttock adjacent to one another, rest of the examination is normal.

3. Abid Abdullaha Mir son of Late M. Abdullaha Mir resident of Kalamdanpora Nawabazar, Srinagar has alleged history of being beaten in the custody of police with history of sodomy. General physical examination is normal on local examination there is no mark of any injury on the body. Again there is no evidence of sexual assault on physical examination.

4. Son of Ghulam Mohammad Khan resident of Urdubazar, Bazar Fatehkadal, Srinagar. Alleged of being beaten in custody. No history of sexual assault. 

5. Names of three other boys could not be discovered because due to social stigma they did not appear before the medical board for examination.

On November 27, as the medical report was submitted by Medical Superintendent, SMHS hospital, Waseem Qureshi, confirming injuries on the body parts of the boys, the police sought 15-day extension to complete its inquiry into the incident. 

The board of doctors, which carried out examination on Nov 3, Nov 9 and Nov 16, has found multiple injuries on the buttocks of two of the victims while another has been cane charged and tortured by cigarette bits. Two boys have injuries in scalp and nasal bone while one boy has had no injury. The report, however, adds there are “no traces of sexual assault.” The opinion of one boy was reserved as his orthopedic tests were not received from Bone and Joint Hospital Barzulla.

Responding to the medical report, lawyers RA Jan, BA Sidiqui and Ghazanfar Ali argued on behalf of the applicants whether the sodomy could be established after eight days of incident. Bashir Sidiqui said the incident happened on Oct 27 and the medical tests, carried on different intervals, were conducted from November 3. He argued whether it was possible to establish sodomy.

Medical Superintendent, Waseem Qureshi replied that he is in-charge of administrative part of the hospital and it was only surgeon who could talk over the issue. Other two advocates RA Jan and Ghazanfar Ali after studying the report expressed shock and demanded that the accused policemen be suspended. 

The public prosecutor speaking over the injury of boys said it was a simple cane-charging. He said the boys were involved in “anti-national activities.” The council on behalf of the applicants argued that how come a person is expected to abide by law when he has been ruthlessly beaten.

First Additional Sessions Judge Srinagar, Shakti Gupta while hearing the case said he needs not to remind the police agency that their job is to protect the life and liberty of citizens and not to harass them. Gupta said the three applicants have not appeared before the medical board for examination as per the order. He said the members, designated by Jammu and Kashmir Bar shall produce the rest of the applicants before the board within 15 days for medical examinations. 

Meanwhile, the inquiry called by police under the supervision of SP Hazratbal submitted its interim report in the court. The report also stated that the inquiry officer has recorded the statement of witness to the arrest, Muhammad Sidiq Mir of Nowhatta. Besides, the SP said eight accused/applicants have been examined while as three more are yet to be examined. He said nominal roll of police party who carried out the arrests have been retrieved and their examination is under process. The police enquiry official asked for 15 more days for completion of the inquiry which was granted by the judge.

All the tortured boys are in incessant shock and trauma. As per their family members they are unable to overcome the fear which they came across in the police lock up. The victims expressed that the guilty police officials are aimed at defeating the merits of the complaint against them, which is under investigation. According to them police are bent upon to fiddle with the important evidences giving rise to the offence for which court is dealing with.
COPS TO USE TASER GUNS ON PROTESTERS

‘WHEN THEIR INTENTION IS TO KILL, THEY’LL KILL WITH WHATEVER WEAPON’

Nov 1: The Jammu and Kashmir Police is all set to introduce Taser guns to control protests and violent mobs in the state.Taser, an electro-shock gun, is considered to be safer and less lethal in controlling violence. Punjab police has already issued 80 Tasers to its men and states like J&K, Madhya Pradesh and the anti-hijack teams of National Security Guards have ordered them.Taser guns generate an electric current to temporarily disrupt the body’s muscular controls, thereby immobilizing the protester or suspect.

J&K Police and CRPF troopers have been regularly using bullets and tear-gas shells to kill or injure peaceful pro-freedom protesters in the state. The firearms have also killed a number of stone-pelting youths during the demonstrations. Public circles and international human rights groups have been accusing the J&K Police and CRPF of using disproportionate force against peaceful protesters and stone-pelting youths, resulting in dozens of deaths of innocent people.

“Taser guns can be safer than fire arms only when used with care. In a place like Kashmir where arms manufactured and meant to bring tears in a protester’s eyes are being used to kill teenagers, Taser can be more lethal weapon in the hands of policemen. When a trooper’s intention is to kill, he will kill with whatever weapon in his hands,” said a Kashmir University student. DIG Headquarters, Dr. Shrinivasan told media that no details related to the security measures can be divulged.

ARMY LEAVES INJURED PORTER IN LURCH

Nov 8: Abdul Majeed Sheikh of Tangdhar, an army porter, was injured in a landmine blast on May 5, 1997. He had been deployed by an officer to fetch firewood from a nearby forest. On his way to the forest near Darshan Post, he stumbled on a landmine and lost his left leg. It was afternoon and my officer sent me to the forest for collecting firewood. I was on my way when this incident happened. I was unconscious after the blast and was rushed to the Army Brigade Hospital for treatment, recalls Sheikh.

I have exhausted all the money I had on my treatment, nobody helped me. I spent Rs 16,000 on my operation and medicines. I got artificial limbs for Rs 4,000, he said. He says with anger that army has not given him any compensation. After six days of the accident, the unit I worked for changed and some other unit came. I went to them and asked for help, but they refused and asked me to contact the unit I worked for, Sheikh says. He now gets a pension of Rs 400 per month from Social Welfare Department. This lazy Government wakes up after 6-7 months and then gives me my pension he says, as the pension doesn't come regularly. 

If he submits the FIR with other documents stating that he was injured during militancy days, we will give him Rs 500/month as pension, Muhammad Ayub Khan of Social Welfare Department told media. I have submitted all the documents required, including the FIR but Social Welfare Department is not paying attention to my application. If only I could bribe them, they will clear my case, says Abdul Majeed Sheikh.

There is a lot of corruption in Social Welfare Department. They only work when we bribe them. I got an artificial limb in JBC Bemina at my own expenses; it weighs 1 and a half kg. But the artificial limb Social Welfare Department gives weighs around 7-8 kg. It's difficult to even move a step with it, and also it takes a long time for one's turn to come for getting the limb, he says.

Sheikh has a son who studies in class eight and a daughter who is married. His wife died many years back. I am living in extreme hard conditions. I have a horse that I rent out and get some money; else I have no other way of earning. I cannot go out and work, it’s practically impossible for me.

LIFER COP’S WIFE DIED AFTER 14-YR PAINFUL WAIT

Nov 2: Hajira Begum of this village died last month after a painful 14-year wait for her husband, Ghulam Qadir Bhat, who has been languishing in jail since his arrest in 1994.Her four children, who never saw their parents together and performed her last rites, are inconsolable. 

 Bhat, who has been charged with involvement in H N Wanchoo’s murder along with Dr Ashiq Husain Faktoo, was a police constable allegedly involved in militant activities. In 2000, however, the TADA court had acquitted him of the charges and granted him bail. But, he was never released. Instead, the Central Bureau of Investigation moved the Apex Court. 

 In August 2001, the Supreme Court sentenced Bhat to life imprisonment directing that his time in jail from 1994 should be taken into account. However, the government did not honour the second part of the order.  The family moved from pillar to post to get him shifted from the Kathua jail but did not succeed. “In fact, the co-accused in the case has been shifted to Srinagar,” the family said, adding that the High Court Bar Association has seldom come forward to plead the case.

 On his arrest, Bhat left behind his aged mother, wife and four children. His mother lost her eyesight after his arrest. However, showing exemplary fortitude and courage, Hajira looked after the family in face of heavy odds. “She was always concerned about our well being,” said her son, Rayees-ul-Qadir.

 Rayees has graduated. Another son of Bhat, Najeeb-ul-Qadir is suffering from heart disease. Adnan-ul-Qadir is pursuing his education in an orphanage while the youngest of his sons, Nasir-ul-Islam, is studying in a government school.  Rayees-ul-Qadir says he has never seen his parents together. “Our mother was everything for us after dad’s arrest. Today we have lost everything,” he said and broke down.

‘FILE STATUS REPORT OF FOREIGNERS IN INDIAN JAILS’

SC DIRECTION TO CENTRE, J&K GOVT

Nov 6: The Supreme Court of India directed the Central and State Governments to file status report on persons detained in various jails of India under orders of Jammu and Kashmir Government. The Supreme Court Bench comprising Justices JJ Tarun Chatterjee and RM Lodha expressed serious concern on the failure of the State and Central Governments to implement the orders of the Apex Court regarding the trial of 25 prisoners who were ordered by the Supreme Court on November 10, 2008, to be tried within one year. The State Government failed to inform the Supreme Court on the status of their trials in the respective courts. 

 The order was passed by the Supreme Court on a writ of habeas corpus filed by Chairman, National Panthers Party, and Executive Chairman, State Legal Aid Committee, Prof Bhim Singh. The petition was filed in 2005 for the release of about 102 detainees. All of them were arrested under Public Safety Act (PSA). Prof Bhim Singh while arguing the case made a strong plea that the ‘most of the detainees from Pakistan, AJK, Afghanistan and some from Lebanon, Turkey etc. who came with guns to Jammu and Kashmir, had exhausted their sentence period if they were to be tried and sentenced.’

 He said that no detainee could be kept in jail under Public Safety Act for more than two years. He urged the court to quash their detention orders and let the State put them on trial. He said that it was because of the appeal from State Government that these detainees should be tried outside the State as it was not capable to take care of the security matters during their trial in J&K. It was on this request by the State Government that the Supreme Court had directed for their trial in the districts they were lodged in.

 
The Government said the petition has mentioned 98 prisoners out of which 27 have been recommended for deportation by the State government. The Government said that 12 detainees have been deported, four namely Shakhawat Hussain Shah, Meharban Sathi, Faiz Ali and Talib Hussain have been given Consular Access and their travel documents have also been received. 

 
Prof Bhim Singh submitted that there was no confirmation about their deportation. Similarly four other detainees namely Shahzad Gul, Muhammad Sharief Haidari, Muhammad Farooq Janbaz and Khursheed Ahmed Mughal have been given Consular Access. 

 However, the confirmations of their nationality and travel documents have not been received. Prof Bhim Singh said there were no confirmation of the deportation of these detainees and other seven who were to be deported as per assurance of the Government. The other seven included Muhammad Ramzan Ansari, Amjad, Muhammad Ajmal Chouhan, Liaqat, Farooq Ahmed Khan, Fazal Din and Majid Khan who were stated to have been recommended for deportation are not available with the Foreigners Division. 

 The SC directed the State and Central Governments to inform the court if its direction on the status of the case of Sonaullah Ranjay s/o Ishaq Hussain, Murtaza Aquib s/o Muhammad Mustafa, Muhammad Nawaz s/o Rehmat Ali, Shahzad Gull s/o Lt Rana Muhammad Ibrahim, Shahid Latief s/o Abdul Latief, who have been lodged in Varanasi Central Jail; Sher Khan s/o Abdul Qayoom, Shahid Jan s/o Bismillah Jan, Fazal Din s/o Muhammad Sarwar, Muhammad Farooq Janbaz s/o Muhammad Yaqoob on their deportation have been implemented.

 The SC further directed the State and Central Governments to inform about the status of other three others who were undergoing sentence in various jails. They are Muhammad Tariq Gujjar s/o Muhammad Aslam Gujjar r/o Khedowali, Sarfaraz Ali Rajput s/o Mukhtar Ali r/o Bahawalpur Pakistan, Wali Muhammad s/o Muhammad Ibrahim R/o Lee Market Daryabad, Karachi. The court directed to list the case after four weeks.

PSA

· SUMJI SLAPPED WITH PSA, AGAIN

Nov 18:  General Secretary of Hurriyat (G) and Muslim Conference head, Ghulam Nabi Sumji has been booked under Public Safety Act (PSA) again. He was arrested by police on November 14 from a locality in Srinagar. Sumji is currently lodged in Central Jail Srinagar. This is the second PSA which has been invoked against Sumji this year by the authorities.

The detention order (No DMS/PSA/52/2009, dated 14 November 2009) has been signed by District Magistrate Srinagar, Mehrajuddin Kakroo which included the grounds of detention also. The grounds of detention given against Sumji read, “On various occasions you were booked under PSA, but on release you continued with illegal and anti-national activities.”

The detention order further reads, “You were last time detained under PSA on June 25, 2009 vide this office under order No.DMS/PSA/06/2009 dated June 8 for indulging in anti-national activities which were prejudicial to the maintenance of  security  of the state. The said order was however quashed by the HC and you were released. However, the reports coming after your release indicate that you continue indulging in anti-national activities which are prejudicial to the maintenance of security in the Sate.”

The grounds of detention further add, “The modus operandi of such activities is so subtle and well crafted that things will go wrong if not cracked well in time. Your program of creating trouble includes instigating general public to resort to violent protests, for which you have already initiated a program and is being implemented in phases.”

The detention order against Sumji concludes, “In order to stop you from indulging in such activities which are highly prejudicial to the maintenance of the security of the state, your detention under PSA has become imperative, for which orders have been issued separately.”   

· PSA SLAPPED ON MASRAT

Nov 20: Despite State Advisory Board's opinion to revoke Public Safety Act (PSA) in case of senior Hurriyat leader and Muslim League Chairman Masrat Alam Bhat, the government slapped PSA against him thus taking the instances of invoking the draconian law against Bhat to 16th time. 

Last time Bhat was arrested on September 4. He continues to be lodged in police station Shaheed Gunj. Among various other points, the present grounds of detention read that Bhat labels every action of police and security agencies as human rights violations. Bhat maintains a close liaison with top leadership of Hurriyat Conference (G) group and devise strategies to disrupt the public tranquility.

It may be recalled that High Court has already quashed PSA invoked against him four times but he was not released till date. Even, on October 29, the government revoked PSA slapped on him under the order number Home/PBV/1993/09 but Bhat continues to be detained by police on police remand in connection with a case registered against him in police station Nageen. He is currently lodged at police station Shaheed Gunj.

Last time the government invoked PSA against Bhat was on September 17. This is the 15th time when Bhat has been booked under PSA. A spokesman of the Muslim League said that despite High Court's categorical orders, Bhat is not being released for unknown reasons.

On September 4, 2008, the police, on a tip-off, near Lal Chowk arrested Bhat, who was then the spokesman of the joint co-ordination committee of the All Parties Hurriyat Conference, spearheading the peaceful agitation against the land transfer to Shri Amarnath shrine Board.

MILITARIZATION

· PEOPLE DENIED WATER IN BANDIPORA

‘TROOPS OCCUPY, POLLUTE NATURAL WATER SOURCES’

Nov 1: Facing severe water shortage, residents of Bandipora have demanded evacuation of local natural water bodies under military occupation. Two main springs of the town- one located near Nishat Park is under Border Security Forces (BSF) and the other is inside the Supply Camp of Army in Bhag Bandipora. Locals told media that both the springs were feeding the whole township and adjoining villages before their occupation by troops after which it was barred for civilian use. 

“The residents never dare to approach troops for water. Sometimes when the area faces severe water crisis, they open the outlet and locals fill their vessels,” said a local Ghulam Ahmed. “A trooper on duty acts as a dictator when they open the outlet. How many people manage to benefit from the water depends on the mood of trooper on duty,” said another local, Shah Muhammad. 

Locals in far-flung village of Vewan are also suffering with the local natural water reservoir under troops’ occupation. The villagers told media that soldiers of 7 Para camped in the village have occupied the government water reservoir meant for civilian use. Vewan hamlet has no source of water other than the occupied reservoir and local women have no option other than to fetch water from river Athwatoo after covering arduous track through the forests.

"We have no water source in the area and the government had constructed the reservoir only after long struggle, but that also has been occupied by the troopers," a local wishing anonymity said. “About five women have died of bear attacks and some were drowned in the river while they were passing through the forest to fetch water from Athwatoo,” he added. 

The residents also complained that the troops camped in the area open the latrine outlets into the water bodies thereby polluting them. “Besides occupying the main natural water sources, troops also pollute the remaining water bodies,” said Ghulam Muhammad, adding, “A small stream which passed from Sonawani to Dachigam via Nowpora has been polluted by troopers of 14 RR camped at Kharpora.” 

Senior citizens in the locality have appealed the government to evacuate the water sources from military occupation in order to address the water crisis in the area. “To avoid the water crisis in the area it will be enough if the government evacuates the springs occupied by troops at Nishat Park and Bhag Bandipora,” said Muhammad Jamal, a local resident. 

Deputy Commissioner Bandipora, Muhammad Sharief Sood told media that the water crisis in the area will soon end. “I will look into the matter if there is any main water source under troops’ occupation,” he added.

· IRP EYEING LAND MEANT FOR KU KUPWARA CAMPUS

Nov 5: After taking control of over 44 Kanals of proprietary land, the Indian Reserve Police (IRP) Force is eyeing another 122 kanals of grazing land, otherwise identified for setting up of the long-awaited Kashmir University’s Kupwara Campus at Wayan in the main town. Sources privy to the government said last year the KU authorities, while informing the district administration that both the government and University Council had finally given nod for setting up of Varsity’s Kupwara Campus through a communiqué, had requested the district administration to identify land for the purpose as early as possible.


In response, sources said, the district administration identified a large patch of grazing land at Wayan in Kupwara town and requested the higher ups for approval of the same in favour of KU’s Kupwara Campus. As the University’s request is still pending with the state government, the IRP, after taking control of over 44 kanals of proprietary land, effected some constructions and even disbursed nearly 80 percent of payments in favour of landowners at Wayan.


Sources said IRP has now formally applied for the transfer of further 122 kanals of land in their favour for setting up a camp, adding the request too is under consideration with the state government. And if the sources are to be believed, the IRP request is likely to be considered.

Sources said the University Council, in a meeting held on June 18, 2008, gave nod for setting up of the said campus and a director was also appointed for the purpose. The proposals with regard to the site of the campus, including related formalities, were drafted and submitted to the government.

The minutes of the meeting clearly mention that former chief minister Ghulam Nabi Azad, in a public meeting at Kupwara, had announced opening of university campuses at Kupwara and Kargil in order to cope with the increasing demand of admission at the PG level.

The matter was placed before the Finance Committee at its meeting held on Oct 6, 2009 at the Raj Bhawan Srinagar for 33.97 Cr for establishment of the two campuses, sources added. They said that around Rs 2.28 Cr recurring and Rs 14.71 Cr as non-recurring were also initially proposed for the establishment of Kupwara campus.

Furthermore, the university authorities had decided to make both the campuses functional from the current academic session, besides having appointed a director.

Director KU Kupwara Campus, Prof G M Malik confirmed that after identification of Wayan land, the proposals with regard to the allocation of requisite funds and transfer of the land were submitted to the government. He said most of the formalities with regard to the establishment of the campus had been fulfilled and hoped that the university campus would be established in Kupwara soon.

Wayan has more than 500 kanals of land to offer which, as per experts, is sufficient for the setting up of a university campus. Initially 300 kanals of land are required to set up such a campus. The land includes 160 kanals of grazing land and 300 kanals of land belonging to the Forest Department, which is without forestation.

Furthermore, Wayan enjoys the privilege of being located in the Kupwara town and easily accessible for the students from Lolab, Handwara and Karnah tehsils of the district.
· ARMY BUNKER IRKS MAGAM STUDENTS

WE HAVE RAISED ISSUE WITH DC: CEO

Nov 22: Two years after the Army claimed to have vacated the twin government educational institutions in Magam village of Handwara, the students still have to walk through the gate guarded by the troops of Rashtriya Rifles. The students of government higher secondary school and middle school said: “We have common gate to enter the school, which is manned by Army.” “The troopers present at the gate frisk our bags sometimes,” a student said. The students of adjoining high school also have to cross another bunker to enter their institution after crossing the main gate.

 According to teachers, the Army had fenced the erstwhile battalion headquarters of 33 RR, presently occupied by 6 RR to separate their camp from these educational institutions. “But it hardly matters and Army presence in peripheries gives it a garrison look,” the teachers added. “We cannot concentrate on our studies under the shadow of guns,” students said. 

 Chief Education Officer, Kupwara H S Bali, said the three educational institutions including the twin Magam institutions were partially occupied by troops. “A bunker with fire fence has been established outside the gate,” he said, adding the issue had been raised with DC Kupwara. He acknowledged that the students were frisked at the gate.

· ARMY ‘OCCUPIES’ HOUSE IN BANDIPORA

Nov 24: Several residents of Bohtou, Bandipora have allegedly been rendered homeless for the past six years, as the troopers have occupied their residential houses. Army had ‘occupied’ four houses of Haji Ghulam Rasool Reshi and Haji Ghulam Nabi Reshi. They told media that in 2003 troopers of Rashtriya Rifles occupied their houses. 

“I along with three other persons was taken by the 57-RR before three years to their camp in Bohtou. Army forcibly took our signatures on white paper for occupation of our houses till November 15, 2009,” said Haji Ghulam Rasool.

 “After the 57RR left our houses on Nov 15, another regiment of army 3 Madras took our houses forcibly,” he said.  Reshi said their houses had been damaged by the army and nobody from the army or administration was coming forward to pay compensation to them. He said even deputy commissioner, M S Soodh, had visited their damaged houses and had assured them of compensation. 

· SNAPPING OF WATER SUPPLY BY TROOPS TRIGGERS PROTESTS

Nov 26: Hundreds of protestors including women carrying empty utensils blocked the Kupwara-Sogam road accusing the troops of cutting water supply to the households in Lassipora. The blockade affected the vehicular movement for hours forcing the police to intervene and pacify the protestors.

 
The protestors said the troops of Rashtriya Rifles at Gujjar Pati Camp occupying the water reservoir allegedly snapped the water supply to the residents few months back causing acute shortage of water in the area. “The residents raised hue and cry over the issue forcing troops to restore the water supply for an hour per day,” the protestors said. They said the troops however snapped the water supply completely from the last few days causing panic among the residents. “The inhabitants, especially women have to fetch water from far-off places due to cutting of water supply,” the agitated protestors said.  

 They said the PHE department, which was supplying water to the area through tankers from the last one-week, had allegedly stopped the supply, leaving the residents in lurch. 

 The Executive Engineer PHE, Muhammad Hussain told media, “The water tankers dispatched by the department for the affected areas were stopped by people at Cherkoot.” “The main reason for water shortage in the Sogam is that the only reservoir supplying water to it is under the occupation of troops and 90 per cent of water from the reservoir is utilized by troops of Gujjar Pati Camp,” he said adding the issue had been taken up with the administration and the concerned minister, who recently visited the spot, assured that the troops would be evacuated from the reservoir.

· CRPF VACATES HOUSE IT HAD OCCUPIED FOR 15 YEARS

Nov 30: With militancy on the decline in Jammu and Kashmir, a house in densely populated Batmaloo area in central Srinagar occupied by the security forces for about 15 years was vacated by the CRPF. “The CRPF vacated the house located at Bonipora road and it is being handed over to its owner Mohammad Ayub Khan,” an official of Batmaloo Police Station told media. 

Batmaloo was once a hub of militant activities in Srinagar and the under-construction house was occupied by the BSF in 1994 after the area was cleared of ultras. The CRPF took over complete charge of security in Srinagar from the BSF in September 2005. 

A company of 157th battalion of the CRPF was the last of security personnel posted at the house, which has witnessed dozens of rocket, grenade and gunfire attacks by militants. However, there has been no attack on the camp over the past several years. The CRPF personnel have been shifted to Battalion headquarters at nearby Tatoo Ground, the official said. 

EVEN AFTER 15 YEARS, IMTIYAZ LONGING FOR JUSTICE

Nov 1: Even after 15 years, Imtiyaz Ahmad of Kacherpora, whose brother, Fayaz Ahmad, was allegedly tortured to death by 5th Gharwal army, longs for justice According to police reports received by the State Human Rights Commission (SHRC), on January 21, 1994, the whole areas of Parraypora Baghat- Barzulla was cordoned off by the 5th Gharwal army. 

During the cordon and the search operation army authorities informed the police that body of Fayaz Ahmad was lying in his house at the Kacherpora. Proceeding under section 176 CRPC was initiated. The body was photographed and subjected to post mortem. The post mortem report was obtained after several years and the doctor had also opined the cause of death as congestive cardiac failure. However, the proceeding was converted to174 and was closed as accidental. 

The report was totally refuted by the petitioner, Imtiyaz Ahmad who approached State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) and produced witness before it. The SHRC after consideration the whole material observed while proceeding with the case that on the day of crackdown the area was cordoned by the 5th Gharwal army. The 5th Gharwal army had informed the police that a dead body was lying in the vicinity. It was further revealed that the witnesses and the police during crackdown clamored that Fayaz Ahmad was tortured to death during the crackdown. It became known that investigating officer had reported that the death had taken place during custody. The postmortem was conducted on January 21, 1994 but it was released on June 10, 2003. 

This depicted volumes about the fact as to why the postmortem report was suppressed by all these years. On the basis of these conclusions, it became clear that Fayaz Ahmad was tortured to death on the day of crackdown by army. Nevertheless, the police reported that the matter was dealt it in terms of section 176 and then it was closed as a case of accident. These findings of the police were contempt of criminal procedure code that is section 174 and section 176. Since the purpose of the section 176 was to hold enquiry by a magistrate, the question arose about the nature of the report of the enquiry magistrate and where was the report.

 The police also stated that it was a matter for magisterial enquiry as laid down in section 176, whereas the ground realities are that no magisterial enquiry was conducted and the police have itself found that the person had died in custody. Taking note of the whole case, the commission recommended to the home department to provide an ex-gratia relief of Rs 1 lakh and benefit of SRO 43 to the petitioner, Imtiyaz Ahmad, brother of Fayaz Ahmad for his custodial death by 5th Gharwal army on January 20 1994 at Kacherpora Baghat Barzulla. Taking action, the home department had forwarded the recommendations to the concerned deputy commissioner on July 16 2007 but till date no action has been taken. The case is still pending for verification. Subsequently, no relief has so far been given to Imtiyaz Ahmad despite such a long wait.


LANDMINES KILLED 3,000 IN 10- YEARS: REPORT

Nov 20: Some 3,000 persons, mostly in Jammu and Kashmir, have been killed in landmine explosions over the past 10 years, according to an NGO working for a world free of antipersonnel landmines and cluster munitions. ‘In the last 10 years, around 3,000 persons died due to landmines and over 2,000 were injured. Most casualties occurred in Jammu and Kashmir, followed by Manipur,’ according to Landmine Monitor Report 2009, which will be released on Nov 21.

Among the states affected by landmines are Rajasthan, Punjab, Sikkim and areas affected by Maoist insurgency. Landmine Monitor is the research and monitoring program of the Nobel Peace Prize-winning International Campaign to Ban Landmines (ICBL).Urging the government to sign the disarmament Mine Ban Treaty, the ICBL said India’s antipersonnel stockpile is estimated to be between four and five million - the fifth largest in the world.

It said India’s last major use of antipersonnel mines took place between December 2001 and July 2002, when the Indian Army deployed an estimated two million mines along its 2,880 km northern and western border with Pakistan during Operation Parakram. The operation directly affected more than 6,000 families across 21 villages in India. Indian Army units have sustained heavy casualties in the course of de-mining operations, notably since the start of mine-laying on the Pakistan border in December 2001, the report said. Some 39 countries, including India, China, Pakistan, Russia, and the US, have not signed the treaty. 
According to Binalakshmi Nepram of Control Arms Foundation of India, the global use, production, and trade of antipersonnel mines have dramatically reduced and casualties have declined. ‘But serious challenges still remain, with more than 70 states still mine-affected today,’ she said.  

IN BRIEF
· INQUIRY OFFICER SERVES NOTICE TO ARMY FOR YOUTH’S KILLING 
Nov 3: The inquiry officer appointed in the case of Sajad Ahmad Ganai of Ganapora Handwara, who was killed by the troops of 32 RR posted at Watergam Baramulla on October 24, has served notices to the deceased’s family and the concerned army post to record their statements with the concerned officer on Nov 9 and Nov 10 respectively.  

Speaking to media, the inquiry officer, ADC Kupwara Syed Itrat Husain confirmed that he has served the notices.
· CRPF BULLET WOUNDS YOUTH

Nov 15: A youth was injured when a riffle of a paramilitary CRPF trooper went off “accidentally” in Kupwara. “A bullet pieced through the chest of Riyaz Ahmad Sheikh, 22, son of Ghulam Muhammad Sheikh, in Trehgam market,” locals said.

  They said incident took place when the patrolling party of 98 battalion of CRPF was moving in the area. Sheikh was rushed to the district hospital Kupwara from where he was referred to Srinagar for specialized treatment. Incident created panic in the area. Later people took to the streets to protest against the “negligence of troopers.”     

 
Senior Superintendent of Police (SSP) Kupwara, Uttam Chand said, “The service riffle of the CRPF man fell down and went off accidentally. We have registered a case and arrested the trooper.”

· KHODA ANNOUNCES 29 OUT-OF-TURN PROMOTIONS

Nov 23: Director General of Police Kuldeep Khoda promoted 29 police personnel for “exemplary courage while fighting militancy and saving life and property of the people of the State”. He lauded the role of all ranks in the force for maintaining vigil and mounting pressure on the militants and their mentors.

Giving the details, Khoda said the personnel had been fighting in tough and extremely hostile conditions and had been putting their life at stake while fighting militants. He said that these police personnel had ensured avoiding collateral damage during the operations against the militants across the State. Those promoted include two Sub-Inspectors as Inspectors, three Selection Grade Constables as Head Constables and 24 Constables as Selection Grade Constables. The DGP, while presiding over the Police Establishment Board meeting, said that they have boosted the morale of all ranks of the force. 

He said all those police personnel who had shown such exemplary courage in eradicating militancy would be honored in the same manner. Khoda reiterated that Jammu and Kashmir Police was determined to uproot the militancy in the State and to create a well protected environment where the rights of the people are fully safeguarded. 

EXPLOSIONS

· 4 CHILDREN INJURED IN POONCH GRENADE EXPLOSION

Nov 1: Four children were seriously injured in a sudden explosion in their house, close to the Line of Control (LoC), police said. A big explosion took place in a house in Loran Mandi, a mountainous area in Poonch district at around 5 p.m. Four children which included two girls and two boys were critically injured in the explosion and have been shifted to Poonch district hospital, about 40 kilometers from the site of the blast.

The children who were injured in the blast have been identified as seven year old Mahroof Hussain Shah, 3 year old Shaheen Fatima and Arshad Hussain Shah along with 5 year old Zaina Fatima. They are children of one Aslam Hussain Shah of Loona Mandi in Poonch district. 

There were conflicting versions about the device. According to one report, it was an unexploded mortar shell which the children had brought to their home from the nearby jungles, while another report said the explosion was due to an improvised explosive device (IED). Police has so far confirmed none of the two versions. Some sources claimed that the four children sustained critical injuries when they were playing with the grenades lying in open area at Loona Mandi near their house which exploded with big boom. 

Sources disclosed that on receiving the information, Deputy Commissioner (Poonch) Kuldeep Khajuria and other senior police officials rushed to District Hospital Poonch. They added that keeping in view the poverty of the injured children; DC Poonch handed over Rs 10, 000 in cash for the treatment to the parents of the children. 

        Meanwhile, police has started the started investigations into the incident to ascertain cause of the blast. It has been reliably learnt that forensic experts have also taken samples of the blast material from the spot. 

· BLAST IN GUREZ, 2 TROOPERS INJURED  

Nov 2: Two army personnel were injured in an accidental grenade blast in Gurez area of Bandipora district.A senior army officer told media that the army men were returning from the routine patrolling along the Line of Control (LoC) near Nowshera Nar in Izmarg area of Gurez when a grenade fell from the hands of a trooper and exploded with a big bang.
 “Two army men were injured in the powerful explosion,” he said. The official said both the troopers were shifted to army hospital. Army has geared up patrolling in Gurez sector after infiltration attempts by militants to cross into Kashmir through the sector.

· 2 INJURED IN GRENADE EXPLOSION

Nov 3: At least two persons were wounded when unknown persons hurled a grenade outside a shrine at Palhallan Pattan in Baramulla district, police said. The injured were identified as Ghulam Muhammad Tabardar son of Ghulam Qadir and Javid Ahmad Waza son of Abdul Qayoom of Haritrath Singpora Pattan. 

· BLAST ROCKS SOPORE  

4 INJURED IN HOUSE EXPLOSION

Nov 6: At least four persons were injured when a grenade lying under the debris of damaged house exploded at Chinipora, Sopore.The grenade exploded at 6.30 pm when people were clearing the debris of the damaged house of one Ghulam Mohidin Khura at Chinipora, Sopore. 

The house was raised to rubble during a gunfight between militants and troopers early this week. One militant was killed while another managed to escape during the gunfight. The grenade explosion caused injuries to four persons namely Rayees Ahmad Ganai, Mohammad Ramzan Ganai, Jamsheeda Akhter and Imtiyaz Ahmad Malla. All were shifted to hospital. The explosion created panic in the entire area with people running for cover. Later, a police party reached the spot to take stock of the situation.

SHO Sopore A.Z Qadri while confirming the grenade blast said police had asked people to carefully clear the rubble as unexploded explosive devices might be present in the debris.

· ARMY MAN INJURED IN MINE BLAST 

Nov 8: An army Jawan of 7 Raj rifle sustained injuries in the explosion of a land mine blast at Tarkundi Nallah in Balakot sector of tehsil Mendhar.The injured army Jawan has been identified as Gumnam Singh Rathore belonging to 7 Raj Rifle. Report said that Rathore was on patrolling duty at Tarkundi Nallah (Balakot sector) when he accidentally put his foot on a landmine and in the explosion he suffered splints injuries on his left leg. The injured Jawan was rushed to the Garrison Hospital (Rajouri) wherein his condition was stated to be out of danger. 

· BSF DIG KILLED IN IED BLAST

Nov 16: A DIG of Border Security Force (BSF) was killed and his driver and a body-guard were injured when their Mahindra Bolero jeep was blown up in a powerful Improvised Explosive Device (IED), planted by the militants after infiltration into Indian territory from the International Border (IB) and reportedly detonated with a remote control device, at Maluchak in Ramgarh sector of Samba district.

The deceased DIG BSF has been identified as Om Prakash Tanwar, DIG Provisioning Frontier Headquarters, Jammu, presently officiating as Sector Commander, Samba belt. Two jawans injured with him in the IED blast have been identified as Sham Dayal Dogra son of Harnam Dass R/o Satwari and Sanjay son of Harcharan Singh R/o Uttar Pradesh.

SUICIDES/FRATACIDAL KILLINGS BY TROOPS

· ARMY TROOPER COMMITS SUICIDE

Nov 13: An Army trooper committed suicide by shooting himself at Keran in frontier district of Kupwara in North Kashmir. A police spokesman said that the army personnel namely Sandeep, Belt No. 3200701H of 5 JAT A-Coy, posted at forward post Kachal Kupwara, committed suicide by shooting himself with his service rifle. 

· JAWAN KILLS COLLEAGUE

Nov 25:  Army Jawan of 6RR located at Vilgam Handwara opened fire with his service riffle on his colleagues killing two of them on the spot. The deceased have been identified as Kuldeep Singh and Vikram.

Reports said that following a heated argument of Jawan with his colleagues, he lost the cool and opened fire on them from a point blank range.

· CRPF JAWAN DIES

Nov 27: A CRPF Jawan died after receiving a bullet injury in his neck in Budgam district of Kashmir valley. The officer commanding the 43 Battalion CRPF E-coy, deployed as guard at Deputy Commissioner's office at Budgam, reported to police station Budgam that Constable Ramesh No. 075273028 of the unit was found critically injured due to a fire arm injury.

The CRPF constable was declared dead at Budgam hospital, a spokesman said, adding police has initiated proceedings under section 174 Cr PC to ascertain the cause of death of the constable. Sources said it was likely that Ramesh had committed suicide using his own service rifle.

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS

· SHOPIAN TRAGEDY IS BLOT ON GOVT FACE: FAROOQ  

Nov 7: Terming the Shopian twin rape and murder case as a blot on the face of the government, National Conference president and Union Minister for New and Renewable Energy Farooq Abdullah asked CBI not to prolong the investigations into the incident. “Asiya and her sister-in-law Neelofar, who were raped and murdered in Shopian, were our daughters. The incident is a blot on the face of the State government and a big challenge for it,” Farooq Abdullah told a gathering at Karewa, Manloo village of Shopian district. 

The former chief minister accompanied by law and parliamentary affairs minister also urged the CBI, which is probing the Shopian twin rape and murder case, not to prolong the investigations. “The CBI should unveil the culprits whoever they are and wherever they are hiding,” he said.

· 700 MILITANTS ACTIVE IN JK: DGP

Nov 21: There are nearly 700 militants operating in Jammu and Kashmir and the infiltrating militants in the state are getting funds and equipment from Pakistan, J&K Director General of Police Kuldeep Khoda said. “There are about 700 militants of different outfits operating in the state and these may include some who had surrendered earlier”, Khoda said.

However, he said the number of former ultras who have rejoined militant outfits is negligible. The DGP said they had shown a decline in recent years and most of them had been foiled by the security forces. “Their strategy is to send more militants inside our territory before the onset of the winter or when passes open with the melting of snow but our troops have foiled their attempts and killed many of them along the borders.”

The DGP also charged Pakistani establishment with providing logistic support to infiltrators, including funding and equipment to vitiate the atmosphere and increase violence in J&K besides coordinating the activities of different outfits like Hizbul Mujahideen (HM) Harkat-ul-Jehadi Islami (HUJI), Jaish-e-Mohammad (JeM) and Lashkar-e-Toiba (LeT) for the purpose.

· 2500 MILITANTS WAITING TO CROSS LOC: ARMY CHIEF

Nov 24: Army Chief General Deepak Kapoor said that around 2500 militants were waiting in AJK to crossover into Jammu and Kashmir before the passes along the Line of Control close due to snowfall.

“There are estimated 42 training camps in Pakistan. The total number of militants in these camps is roughly between 2000 to 2500 and they are ready to infiltrate into this side,” Gen Kapoor told at the sidelines of the inauguration of the Balidan Sthambh war memorial here.

The army chief, however, said that the troops were all prepared to foil any infiltration bid by militants. “Our troops are always ready. There is no fear. Indian army is ready to deal with them,” Kapoor said. To a question about ceasefire violation along the border, he said, “There has been decrease in ceasefire violations this year as compared to last year”.

“Our attempt is that Pakistan stops ceasefire violations completely. But their (Pakistan’s) attempt is to push in more and more militants,” he added. 

About the security situation in the state of Jammu and Kashmir, he said that the militants had changed their modus operandi and instead of attacking the civilian population the attacks on armed forces had increased. “Attacks on civilians have come down, but there is increase in the number of attacks on security forces, we are taking adequate steps to deal with this,” he said.

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF NOV -2009

	  DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	Nov 01
	2
	1
	-
	-

	Nov 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 03
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Nov 04
	-                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 07
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 08
	1
	1
	1
	-

	Nov 09
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 10
	-
	4
	-
	-

	Nov 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 13
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 14
	-
	5
	-
	-

	Nov 15
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 16
	3
	2
	-
	-

	Nov 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 21
	1
	2
	-
	-

	Nov 22
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 25
	2
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 26
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 27
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 28
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Nov 30
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL
	12
	19
	1
	0

	                                                IN TOTAL
	32 Killings


	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	Nov 8 
	-
	1
	-
	-

	Total
	0
	1
	0
	0



CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS

Nov 1: Two police constables were shot dead by unidentified gunmen in Qamarwari. The deceased have been identified as Manzoor Ahmad and Abdul Kabir. Meanwhile, an area commander of the LeT was killed in an encounter with troops at Mahore in Reasi district. The slain militant has been identified as Mohammad Farooq alias Abu Tala son of Abdul Gani resident of Baddar Mahore in Falaskote. In another incident, four children were injured, two of them seriously in an explosion at a village in Poonch district. The injured have been identified as Farooq Hussain, 8, Irshad Hussain, 3, Nahim Fatima, 6 and Shaheen Akhtar, 4.
Nov 2: Two army personnel were injured in an accidental grenade blast in Gurez area of Bandipora district. 

Nov 3: Police claimed to have killed four militants in separate encounters across the state, while two persons were wounded when unknown persons hurled a grenade outside a shrine at Palhalan Pattan in Baramulla district. The injured were identified Ghulam Muhammad Tabardar son of Ghulam Qadir and Javid Ahmad Waza son Abdul Qayoom of Haritrath Singpora Pattan.

Nov 4: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Nov 5: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley. 

Nov 6: At least four persons were injured when a grenade lying under the debris of damaged house exploded at Chinipora, Sopore. The grenade exploded at 6.30 pm when people were clearing the debris of the damaged house of one Ghulam Mohidin Khura at Chinipora, Sopore. The house was raised to rubble during a gunfight between militants and troopers early this week. The grenade explosion caused injuries to four persons namely Rayees Ahmad Ganai, Mohammad Ramzan Ganai, Jamsheeda Akhter and Imtiyaz Ahmad Malla. 

Nov 7: At least 30 persons including nine policemen were injured in the clashes that erupted after murder of a man in Maisuma. Police opened fire in air and lobbed teargas shells to disperse protestors.

Nov 8: A surrendered militant-turned BSF Jawan along with his wife were shot dead while their eight year old son sustained critical bullet injuries after some unidentified gunmen barged into their house at Kandi area of district Rajouri. The deceased have been identified as Mohammed Arif son of Ghulam Mohammed and his wife Malika Khatoon alias Kousar Akhtar both of Morha Kandi. Their injured child has been identified as Abrar Ahmed. Meanwhile, police claimed to have killed a Lashkar-e-Toiba (LeT) militant at Koti area of district Doda. The slain militant has been identified as Mohammed Hussain son of Goti Malik of village Koti.
Nov 9: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 10: Two unidentified militants were killed in an encounter at Sheikhpora village of Baramulla district. Meanwhile, two militants were killed in an encounter with troops at Mahore in Jammu's Reasi district. One of the slain militant has been identified as Rafiq alias Noman, district commander of Lashkar-e-Toiba.

Nov 11: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 12: A police sub-inspector was critically injured when a militant, whom he was chasing, shot at him in Sopore town in Baramulla district. The injured police officer has been identified as Manzoor Ahmad.

Nov 13: An Army trooper identified as Sandeep, Belt No. 3200701H of 5 JAT A-Coy, posted at forward post Kachal Kupwara,  committed suicide by shooting himself at Keran in frontier district of Kupwara in North Kashmir. 

Nov 14: At least five infiltrators were killed when the Army foiled an infiltration bid in the Uri sector of Baramulla district. Those killed were yet to be identified.

Nov 15: A youth identified as Riyaz Ahmad Sheikh, 22, son of Ghulam Muhammad Sheikh was injured when a riffle of a paramilitary CRPF trooper went off accidentally in Trehgam, Kupwara.
Nov 16: A DIG Border Security Force (BSF) was killed and his driver and a body-guard were injured when their vehicle was blown up by a powerful IED explosion at Maluchak in Ramgarh sector of Samba district. Meanwhile, one militant and two troopers were killed in an encounter at Kupwara. In another incident a militant was killed in an encounter with policemen and troops in Pulwama district. 

Nov 17: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 18: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 19: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 20: A Special Police Officer identified as Joginder Singh was wounded when unidentified person lobbed a grenade at CRPF banker near Gudhali Chowk in Kishtwar.
Nov 21: Two militants and an army trooper were killed in Kangagali area of Poonch near the Line of Control. The official said slain militants belonged to Lashkar-e-Toiba and their identity was being ascertained. The deceased trooper has been identified as Suresh Kumar.

Nov 22: Unidentified gunmen shot at and critically injured a senior National Conference Halqa president, Ghulam Mohammad Dar (45) in Baramulla district of Jammu and Kashmir. He was shot at by some unidentified pistol-borne person in the compound of his house at Hardushiva near Sopore town.

Nov 23: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 24: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 25: Army Jawan of 6RR located at Vilgam Handwara opened fire with his service riffle on his colleagues killing two of them on the spot. The deceased have been identified as Kuldeep Singh and Vikram.

Nov 26: Police claimed to have killed two militants in an encounter with troops in Katidhar-Gurmul forest area of Doda district.
Nov 27: A CRPF Jawan died after receiving a bullet injury in his neck in Budgam district of Kashmir valley. The deceased Jawan has been identified as Constable Ramesh No. 075273028.Police has initiated proceedings under section 174 CrPc to ascertain the cause of death of the constable.

Nov 28: A Special Police Officer (SPO) was killed in an accidental fire by another SPO at Chingus in Rajouri district. The incident took place when SPO Gopal Krishan was cleaning his Self Loading Rifle. The gun went off accidentally when Gopal was adjusting the magazine of the rifle and bullet hit Anil Kumar at chest. He was immediately shifted to Rajouri hospital where he succumbed to his injuries.

Nov 29: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Nov 30: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

JK CRICKETER CLEARED IN RDX CASE 


On November 3, Jammu and Kashmir cricketer Pervez Rasool was cleared by forensic reports in the RDX case, where the cricketer’s kit bag was suspected to have traces of RDX on it. The forensic report which came out today confirmed that there contrary to earlier beliefs, there was no trace of RDX found on the cricketer’s kit bag. On October 18 a remote explosive bomb detector at Bangalore’s Chinnaswamy Stadium ‘‘traced the presence of explosives’’ in a bag belonging to Pervez Rasool. 


 Chaos unfolded on the morning of October 18 when the private agency tasked with security at the Chinnaswamy Stadium reported that a detector was beeping, indicating explosives within 300 meters. Alerted, the Karnataka ATS moved in at 6.30am and narrowed their search to the rooms in the KSCA Club House in the stadium. The J&K under-22 team had checked in on Friday night for a match in the C K Nayudu tournament from October 21. 


 The policemen were led by sniffer dogs to room 105, occupied by Rasool and Mehrajuddin. The detectors went off in the room and the cops zeroed in on Rasool’s kit bag, which they suspected had traces of explosives. Rasool was taken for questioning. Mehrajuddin was asked to accompany him. After questioning, Rasool was released on October 31 evening.  














WOMAN /CHILDREN KILLED





Nov 8: A surrendered militant-turned BSF Jawan along with his wife were shot dead while their eight-year-old son sustained critical bullet injuries after some unidentified gunmen barged into their house at Kandi area of district Rajouri. The woman has been identified as Malika Khatoon alias Kousar Akhtar wife of Mohammed Arif of Morha Kandi. Their injured child has been identified as Abrar Ahmed.
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STATEMENT OF RESOLUTION


Civil society favours the institution of dialogue for the resolution of disputes including determination of the political status of the disputed Jammu and Kashmir. We believe any dialogue must address the aspirations of the primary stakeholders – the people of Jammu and Kashmir. 


We are concerned that:


The stakeholders as far as the India’s latest pronouncements are concerned are not clearly defined at all.


New Delhi has not reviewed its arbitrary constitutional position on Jammu and Kashmir to facilitate any genuine dialogue process.


The liberation struggle of people of Jammu and Kashmir in its historical perspective has not been acknowledged in the political processes New Delhi has conducted so far.


This proposed dialogue seems to be about administrative matters, Indian security concerns and not about determining the political status/sovereignty of Jammu and Kashmir. 


The negotiating position that a section of Kashmir’s resistance leadership is taking to the table is not clearly pronounced.  


Those who intend to enter a dialogue with New Delhi are going to talk about disengagement with India in some other form than the principle of right of self-determination and relevant UN resolutions.


New Delhi’s appointment of India’s Home Minister as the “point-man” on the latest offer of dialogue suggests that India is not going to address the question of sovereignty of Jammu and Kashmir but treating the issue as internal law and order affair. 


The agenda and format of the current dialogue offer is not transparent.


The offered format is not democratic in nature as there are no inherent mechanisms to put to public vote the conclusion, if any, of the “quiet dialogue”. 


The conditions on ground are not conducive for any expected outcome to be implemented due to heavy military occupation of Jammu and Kashmir. 


The current format might dilute the international character of the Kashmir dispute rather than acknowledge it.


WE RESOLVE THAT:  


The above concerns of the people of Jammu and Kashmir, the primary stakeholders, are first addressed to in any exercise for the resolution of the Kashmir dispute including in the current proposed dialogue. The dialogue needs to be conducted under the international guarantees and all the three stakeholders, resistance leadership, India and Pakistan have to be part of it.
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